Questions and Answers
BESTFIT Innovative Charging Solutions
GFO-20-605

September 10, 2020

The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the purpose of the solicitation and to determine whether or not their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known.

Administrative

Q1:	Can a prime Applicant change between pre-application abstracts and full applications (i.e. another Pre-App team member takes over as prime)?

A1: 	Yes, however such a change will need to be clearly identified in the full application and must not impact or alter the scope of the project detailed in the pre-application abstract.
Q2: 	How much budget and cost granularity needs to be input for pre-application abstracts? And can this change within bounds between pre-application and full application?

A2:	Pre-application abstracts do not require a budget form. Please refer to Section IV.D Pre-Application Organization / Required Documents.
 
Q3: 	Can video files be submitted in the application?

A3: 	No. Photos may be embedded in the pre-application project abstract and full application Project Narrative.

Q4: 	If we add a city for support, where does it go – pre-application abstract, full application, or both?

A4: 	Applicants are not required to include their partners or letters of support/commitment in the pre-application abstract phase, but these are required in the full application. Please refer to Section IV.D Pre-Application Organization / Required Documents. Only those projects that received a pre-application abstract passing score are eligible to submit a full application and application letters of support.

Applicant Eligibility

Q5: 	Can an EVSP be the prime Applicant on multiple proposals?

A5:	Yes, Applicants may submit multiple applications. However, projects submitted by the same Applicant must be separate and distinct. In addition, the maximum award amount applies to the Applicant, not the project.

Q6: 	Are entities such as nonprofits, State Agencies, EV installers, business consultants that provide networking software services, or joint power authorities eligible to apply?

A6: 	Per Section II.A, the primary Applicant must be a private entity and be involved in the EV or charging equipment business. Additional team members may be composed of other entities.

Q7: 	Can the primary Applicant be a newly registered and funded startup and still pass the required eligibility criteria?

A7:	Yes. The primary Applicant must be registered to do business in California and be in good standing.

Q8: 	Are there any regional restrictions for eligibility in the solicitation?

A8: 	There are no regional restrictions, but the project must be within California.

Q9: 	Can you clarify what business presence means? Are there restrictions on out of state participants if the primary lead is in state?

A9: 	Business presence is achieved by registering with the Secretary of State. There are no restrictions on out of state participants, but applications will be scored based on the economic benefits provided to California. 

Q10: 	What does and does not qualify as an Applicant in the EVSP category? What documents validate and qualify an Applicant as an EVSP?

A10: 	From Section II.A of the GFO manual, an EVSP is defined as an “entity that manages connectivity across a network of chargers and/or offers software solutions using EV charging equipment.” Documentation is not required to qualify an Applicant as an EVSP.

Q11: 	Rolling Energy Resources is a software-based solution to the problem of electric grid resilience. RER connects directly to each vehicle’s onboard telematics, the data system inside the car which connects to the manufacturer's app. Do you think that we are a good fit for an application?  While we appreciate the Pre-Application opportunity as a way to find out in advance if we are not a good fit, we are curious about whether submitting a Pre-App at this point makes sense. Can you offer any insights or advice in that regard?

A11: 	CEC staff cannot offer any insights or advice on potential projects. Staff will evaluate a pre-application abstract if one is submitted to determine if the Applicant may submit a full application.

Project Eligibility

Q12: 	If a solution is transportable yet is employed as a permanent asset, would this qualify the project?

A12: 	There is no restriction in the solicitation for mobile versus stationary technologies.

Q13: 	What is meant by “may not incorporate DERs”? Does that mean CEC funding cannot be used to fund solar, battery, etc.? Or the project site cannot have any DERs onsite? Would EVSE with integrated energy storage be considered an eligible technology in lieu of no DERs for MDHD projects? Would a standalone charging station with solar qualify for this grant opportunity?

A13: 	DERs are eligible as a reimbursable cost or match share component in light-duty projects. DERs may be included in MD/HD projects, but may not be a reimbursable cost or used as match. EVSE with integrated energy storage are eligible for MD/HD projects. Solar systems delivering power to the charging station are eligible only for light-duty projects, not MD/HD projects. 

Q14: 	What is the reason for the exclusion of DERs from MD/HD projects?

A14: 	Another CEC solicitation is expected to fund DER solutions for the MD/HD sector: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-09/evaluating-distributed-energy-resource-integration-medium-and-heavy-duty.

Q15: 	If a partner of a project is a utility that has DER’s that support the grid, would that be a factor in the exclusion of DERs for the MDHD vehicle sector?

A15: 	No. Only standalone DERs that provide electricity to EVSE are excluded for MD/HD projects.

Q16: 	If the proposed project isn’t a “technology” itself (e.g. a software only solution), would this be ineligible?

A16: 	This solicitation allows innovative business models and software solutions leveraging charging technology. Please refer to Section II.B, Project Requirements.

Q17: 	Will residential vehicle-to-grid solutions be eligible?

A17: 	Yes. Please refer to Section II.B, Project Requirements.

Q18: 	Are there any requirements for solar/wind power for charging stations or is it up to our innovation?

A18:	There are no requirements for solar/wind power for charging stations.

Q19: 	If “proof of function” is not an eligible project expense, does this mean we need to already have a working prototype before applying?

A19: 	At a minimum, technologies must be at the Bench Testing and Validation phase, which is validation of a concept in a test setup under real operational conditions. Please refer to Section II.B.1, Eligible Projects, for more information about eligible stages of development.

Q20: 	Do projects need to be done in California to be eligible?

A20: 	Yes, projects need to be installed in California in order to be eligible. Please refer to Section VII.E, Full Application Evaluation Criteria in Addendum 1 of the GFO manual.

Q21: 	Are solutions that are already commercially available eligible, or is this solution for truly innovative products and/or services not yet in the marketplace?

A21: 	Commercially available solutions are eligible. Please refer to Section II.B.1, Eligible Projects, for more information about eligible stages of development.

Q22: 	Is a project that would take a currently existing charger that operates at a lower voltage and design it with a higher voltage for real world MHD applications eligible for bench testing and validation costs? Is this eligible for demonstration costs, and what is included in demonstration costs?

A22: 	Without knowing the full details of the project, the described project is eligible. Please refer to Section II.C, Eligible Project Costs.

Q23: 	Is retrofitting existing vehicles to enable wireless charging an eligible project, regardless of the ICE or EV to begin with?

A23: 	Yes.

Project Requirements

Q24: 	What is meant by “types of vehicles using the charging equipment” for data reporting? Do you mean LD/MD/HD? Not all EVSE will release vehicle make, model, year, or type due to personal identification issues.

A24: 	The Applicant is responsible for determining definitions and amount of information to be provided with their application.

Q25: 	How long can the project duration be?

A25: 	All work must be scheduled for completion no later than March 31, 2026, as stated in Section VI.D.4. Each project must provide a minimum of 12 months of data collection on the deployed charging infrastructure. Please refer to Section II.B.2, Data Collection. 

Q26: 	Are there going to be charging standard requirements (e.g. SAE) related to projects that use wireless charging, since the MHD wireless standard is still in the final phases of development? If yes, could a UL field certification act as a viable substitute?

A26: 	No charging standard requirements are included in this solicitation.

Eligible Reimbursable and Match Share Costs

Q27: 	Are safety certification (UL) tests an eligible reimbursable cost or match share?

A27: 	Yes.

Q28: 	Would EV monthly lease costs be an eligible cost share during the duration of the 12-month demonstration?

A28: 	No. Please refer to Section II.E, Unallowable Costs.

Q29: 	Can this grant be used in conjunction with other CEC/CARB grants?

A29: 	Other sources of CEC funding may not be used as match share for this solicitation. However, CEC funding could be stacked as long as it is not used as match share and the other source of funding allows for stacking. The solicitation does not restrict use of CARB grants/funding as match.

Q30: 	Is there any situation in which a grad student can have their tuition & fees (i.e. benefits) covered under reimbursable project costs or in-kind match share? 

A30: 	Yes. It is incumbent upon the Applicant to demonstrate the relationship between student work and the proposed project. 

Q31: 	It appears that the GFO was quite prescriptive and restrictive with what would be regarded as eligible costs; whereas, the pre-application workshop presentation was much more generous with what would be regarded as eligible costs. Could you please clarify?

A31: 	Please follow the language and guidelines provided in Section II.C. in the GFO manual. 

Q32: 	Could you clarify whether EV depreciation could count as match share? 

A32: 	Only the vehicle costs explicitly specified in Section II.C are eligible for reimbursable costs or match share. All other vehicle costs, as denoted in Section II.E, are ineligible for reimbursable costs or match share. Vehicle depreciation is not an allowable expense either as reimbursable or match share.

Q33: 	Are bi-directional vehicles considered DERs?

A33: 	No. 

Q34: 	Is vehicle equipment an eligible cost or eligible in kind match share? Can vehicle equipment consider depreciation value during demonstration?

A34: 	Charging equipment and software for vehicle retrofits are an eligible cost. Vehicle powertrain and battery packs used for vehicle-to-vehicle charging are an eligible cost. Vehicle depreciation is not an eligible reimbursable cost or match share.

Q35: 	Is employee salary by the prime Applicant for project management an allowed and eligible cost? What is considered proof of salary?

A35: 	Yes. Proof of salary is not required at the time of application, but must be documented and provided when audited. Forms of acceptable documentation for salaried employees include payroll registers, paychecks, and/or W2s that document the actual salary of the employee and timesheets documenting all hours worked for all projects (not just the CEC-funded project), including leave time, training, administrative time, etc. Timesheets should show proof of self-certification by the employee, review and approval by a supervisor/manager, and maintained in a format that cannot be altered after supervisor approval.

Q36: 	Can you use the revenue lost from parking spaces as match funding for charging demonstrations? Does this answer change if the charging spaces are available to others such as a fleet or the public?

A36: 	No, forgone, revenue, profit, rent, etc. are not an eligible reimbursable or match share cost. This answer does not change if the spaces are made available to others. 

Q37: 	Is out of state vehicle testing and validation for new wireless charging integration an eligible project cost or match share?

A37: 	Testing that occurs out of state is an eligible project cost or match share, but all demonstrations must be installed in California. Applicants are encouraged to maximize economic benefits for California. In accordance with the evaluation criteria and with everything else being equal, projects that increase economic benefits for California will score higher.

Q38: 	Is vehicle-to-grid or wireless charging energy (kWh) dispensed an eligible project cost or match share? What is the eligible kWh consumer?

A38:	Energy purchased to demonstrate vehicle-to-grid/wireless charging capabilities is an eligible project cost and/or match share. 

Q39: 	Are wireless vehicles an eligible project cost or match share? What is included as an eligible cost in wireless charging retrofits?

A39: 	Vehicles are not an eligible reimbursable cost or match share. Charging equipment and software are eligible for wireless charging retrofits. Please refer to Section II.C, Eligible Project Costs.

Q40: 	How long is warranty as an eligible cost?

A40: 	There is no time limitation for a warranty. All costs must be incurred during the term of the agreement, and not later than March 31, 2026. Longer warranties may impact the availability of funds for other parts of the proposed project and may impact the project’s cost-effectiveness which will affect scoring in accordance with the Evaluation Criteria.

Q41: 	Would funding for design costs that include staff working on software development be covered under “Planning and Engineering Design Costs”?

A41: 	Yes.

Past Performance Reference Form

Q42: 	Are Applicants ineligible if they have no past performance history with CEC grants? 

A42: 	No. It is not a requirement to have received a prior CEC grant in order to apply to this solicitation.

Q43: 	What is the definition of a “team member” with respect to the Applicant regarding the Past Performance Reference Form?

A43: 	“Team member” is defined as any member that is considered to be part of the project team and will be working on the project submitted if awarded and/or receiving any grant funds from the project. Addendum 1 to the GFO manual clarifies that if the description of the team’s history includes a specific project(s) under current or prior agreements with public agreements with public funding (e.g. contract, grant, or loan), the Applicant must submit a Past Performance Reference Form (Attachment 10) for the project(s), even if the team member is not the primary Applicant.

Q44: 	Is the requirement for ALL grants only with the CEC and other public agencies, or does it include projects using public funding and possibly Settlement Funds with a public agency?

A44: 	Addendum 1 to the GFO manual clarifies that primary Applicants must submit a Past Performance Reference Form for all CEC agreements (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) within the past 10 years (if any), and the 5 most recent agreements with other public agencies within the past 10 years (if any). This includes projects using Settlement Funds administered by a public agency. 

Q45: 	Is the 10 year period from date of grant start or completion? 

A45: 	The 10 year period is from date of application submittal.

Q46: 	If no prior grants are referenced in the Project Narrative, does it still require a separate Past Performance Reference Form?

A46: 	Addendum 1 of the GFO manual clarifies that primary Applicants must submit a Past Performance Reference Form for all CEC agreements (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) within the past 10 years (if any), and the 5 most recent agreements with other public agencies within the past 10 years (if any). This requirement for primary Applicants is not tied to what is or is not included in the Project Narrative. However, if the description of the team’s history includes a specific project(s) under current or prior agreements with public agreements with public funding, the Applicant must submit a Past Performance Reference Form (Attachment 10) for the project(s), even if the team member is not the primary Applicant.

Q47: 	Are a minimum number of references required?

A47: 	Addendum 1 of the GFO manual clarifies that primary Applicants must submit a Past Performance Reference Form for all CEC agreements (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) within the past 10 years (if any), and the 5 most recent agreements with other public agencies within the past 10 years (if any).

Q48: 	Would an engaged workplace site host be deemed as a “Non Applicant Team member” and subject to extensive filing of the Form 10’s?

A48: 	If the description of the team’s history includes a specific project(s) under current or prior agreements with public agreements with public funding (e.g. contract, grant, or loan), the Applicant must submit a Past Performance Reference Form (Attachment 10) for the project(s), even if the team member is not the primary Applicant.

Q49: 	For the Past Performance Reference Form, we are wondering if letters of interest or plans for working together will meet this criteria rather than references for previous projects?

A49: 	Letters of support will not meet the Past Performance requirement. Addendum 1 of the GFO manual clarifies that primary Applicants must submit a Past Performance Reference Form for all CEC agreements (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) within the past 10 years (if any), and the 5 most recent agreements with other public agencies within the past 10 years (if any). If the Applicant does not have past performance history, then the Applicant does not need to submit Past Performance Reference Forms.
Miscellaneous

Q50: 	What period of time should be used for the grams of CO2 mitigation in the application?

A50:	The Applicant must provide detail on how they calculate the grams of CO2 reduced, including the period of time used for the calculation and all other inputs, assumptions, and methodologies.

Q51: 	What is the definition of “form factor”?

A51: 	Form factor is the “shape” or “housing” of the charging station, that could take on many forms, e.g. a wallbox.

Q52: 	If a single development effort can serve multiple Vehicle Sectors/Areas of Focus, how is that scored? How should we apply? 

A52:	Applicants must designate the principal Vehicle Sector and Area of Focus that their project will address. If the project can serve multiple benefits, the justification and ability to do so will be considered in the evaluation criteria listed in Sections IV.E (pre-application abstracts) and VII.E (full applications). Applicants are eligible to submit multiple applications if each project is separate and distinct, although the maximum award is for the Applicant, not the project.

Q53: 	Will products shipping starting in Q4 2020 be considered commercially available?

A53:	If the product is available for commercial purchase by the date of application submission then it would be considered commercially available. Please note that, as stated in Section II.B.1, Eligible Projects, it is not a requirement for products to be commercially available in order to be eligible. 

Q54: 	If we fit both LDV and MDHD vehicles, but are more advanced in one, is there an advantage to applying under the one in which we are in a more advanced stage of development?

A54:	The Applicant is responsible for deciding what sector they want to apply to.

Q55: 	Is there a preferred time frame for the cost of charging calculation (i.e., the cost of charging in $/kWh could be calculated over the entire duration of the project, the expected lifespan of the charging equipment (10 years, for example) or some other period)? Does the CEC have any preference, or is it up to the Applicant to choose a time frame and be clear regarding the duration being used?

A55: 	The Applicant is responsible for deciding how they calculate cost of charging. Applicants must show in detail how they completed the calculation, with all inputs (including time frame), assumptions, and methodologies.

Q56: 	Who is eligible for the LCFS credits?

[bookmark: _GoBack]A56: 	There are no provisions in the GFO that would impose restrictions or requirements on eligibility or assignment for Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) credits.
